Instructor’s Notes for “Plane Crazy” Activity:

Assemble all of the required materials:

•	100 pennies

•	10 pieces of paper—letter size, plain bond

•	50' Masking tape per transport area (Normally you will need one complete roll)

•	10 pairs of gloves (simple gardening gloves)

•	Tape measure

•	10 black transparency markers

•	Copies of the 5 different tasks on 5 different colored paper, 6 per table

Steps for conducting the activity:

1.	Assign the participants to 5 or 6 person teams. Try and distribute the various functional specialties represented in the classroom. Ask each team to select a spokesperson and an observer. Based on earlier observations of the workshop participants, select one person from each team to be an observer, and one person to be the DON COTR. Provide the observer with the critique sheet appropriate for their team, and the task descriptions for his/her team (remind them not to pass out the instructions until you tell them to do so.) In private, provide the COTRs with the COTR instructions and the task resources, i.e., pennies, papers, and gloves. Tell the COTRs not to hand out the resources until the team has had 15 minutes to read their task instructions. Also, for the teams that require gloves, remind the COTRs to hand out the gloves only if someone on the team asks for them.

2.	Review the general exercise instructions with all of the participants. Ask them for any questions.

3.	Tell the observers to pass out the task descriptions to their teams. Do not pass out any other task materials at this time. Remind the teams they have 15 minutes to review their tasks.
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To: Contractor

From: DON

Subject: Task Order #l

Transport at least 5 pennies a minimum of 10 feet but not more than 20 feet in l0 minutes or less. The DON RFP applicable to this task simply states: “The only materials allowed in the 0' to 20' transport area are pennies and paper. Also, there was a recent article in the Wall Street Journal on the significant increase in paper cuts to workers. Please use caution when using paper.”

The compensation section of the RFP states that DON will pay a Firm-Fixed Price of $133.5K for meeting the minimal requirements (5 pennies transported 10 feet). To encourage cost effectiveness and in the spirit of getting more for less, DON will pay the following incentives:

1.	$1K for each penny over 5 transported up to 10 pennies.

2.	$.1K ($100) for each foot achieved beyond the 10 foot mark for each penny.

3.	$1K for each square inch of paper under 93.5 square inches not used up to $17K.

4.	$2K for each minute of the allotted time not used.

Please note the start time:

Your 10 minutes starts when the COTR provides your materials.

Please note the time completed:

Total Incentives Earned:

Pennies:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Feet:	#_______x $.1K = $_________

Paper not used: 	#_______x $1K = $_________

Time not used:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Incentives Total:	$_________

Firm Fixed Price:	$_________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_________
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To: Contractor

From: DON

Subject: Task Order #2

Transport at least 5 pennies a minimum of 10 feet but not more than 20 feet in 10 minutes or less. The DON RFP applicable to this task simply states: 1) personnel are not permitted in the 0' to 20' transport area; and 2) the only materials allowed in the transport area are pennies and paper. Also, there was a recent article In the Wall Street Journal on the significant increase in paper cuts to workers. Please use caution when working with paper.

The Compensation section of the RFP states that DON will pay a Firm-Fixed Price of $133.5K for meeting the minimal requirements (5 pennies transported 10 feet). To encourage cost effectiveness and in the spirit of getting more for less, DON will pay the following incentives:

1.	$lK for each penny over 5 transported, up to 10 pennies. 

2.	$.1K (i.e., $100) for each foot achieved beyond the 10 foot mark for each penny. 

3.	$1K for each square inch of paper under 93.5 square inches not used up to $17K. 

4.	$2K for each minute of the allotted time not used.

Please note the start time: _________

Your 10 minutes starts when the COTR gives you the materials.

Please note the time completed: 

Total Incentives Earned:

Pennies:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Feet:	#_______x $.1K = $_________

Paper not used: 	#_______x $1K = $_________

Time not used:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Incentives Total:	$_________

Firm Fixed Price:	$_________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_________

�Handout:	Activity: Plane Crazy





To: Contractor

From: DON

Subject: Task Order #3

Using a paper airplane transport at least 5 pennies a minimum of 10 feet but not more than 20 feet in 10 minutes or less. The DON RFP applicable to this task simply states: 1) personnel are not permitted in the 0' to 20' transport area; and 2) the only materials allowed in the transport area are pennies and paper. Also, there was a recent article in the Wall Street Journal on the significant increase in paper cuts to workers. Please use caution when working with paper.

The Compensation section of the RFP states that DON will pay a Firm-Fixed Price of $133.5K for meeting the minimal requirements (5 pennies transported 10 feet in accordance with all federal, state, local and DON requirements). To encourage cost effectiveness and in the spirit of getting more for less, DON will pay the following incentives:

1.	$1K for each penny over 5 transported up to 10 pennies. 

2.	$.lK(i.e., $100) for each foot achieved beyond the 10 foot mark for each penny. 

3.	$1K for each square inch of paper under 93.5 square inches not used up to $17K. 

4.	$2K for each minute of the allotted time not used.

Please note the start time: 

Your 10 minutes start when the COTR gives you the materials.

Please note the time completed:

Total Incentives Earned:

Pennies:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Feet:	#_______x $.1K = $_________

Paper not used: 	#_______x $1K = $_________

Time not used:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Incentives Total:	$_________

Firm Fixed Price:	$_________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_________
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To: Contractor

From: DON

Subject: Task Order #4

Using a paper airplane, transport at least 5 pennies a minimum of 10 feet but not more than 20 feet in 10 minutes or less. The airplane must have a length of 11" and a wing span of at least 2". The DON RFP applicable to this task simply states: 1) personnel are not permitted in the 0' to 20' transport area; and 2) the only materials allowed in the transport area are pennies and paper. Failure to comply with the DON contract has significant fee penalties. Also, there was a recent article in the Wall Street Journal on the significant increase in paper cuts to workers. As a result the Secretary has mandated that all work in which paper is used must be done in a manner that ensures paper injuries, such as paper cuts, are avoided. Therefore, all workers are required to wear gloves as personnel protective equipment.

The Compensation section of the RFP states that DON will pay a Firm-Fixed Price of S133.5K for meeting the minimal requirements (5 pennies transported 10 feet in accordance with all federal, state, local and DON requirements). To encourage cost effectiveness and in the spirit of getting more for less, DON will pay the following incentives:

1.	$1K for each penny over transported up to 10 pennies.

2.	$.1K (i.e., $100) for each foot achieved beyond the 10 foot mark for each penny.

3.	$1K for each square inch of paper under 93.5 square inches not used up to $17K.

4.	$2K for each minute of the allotted time not used.

Any contractor that allows one of their employees to get injured will automatically get a $2K reduction in their fee.

Please note the start time:

Your 10 minutes starts when the COTR give you the materials.

Please note the time completed:

Total Incentives Earned:

Pennies:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Feet:	#_______x $.1K = $_________

Paper not used: 	#_______x $1K = $_________

Time not used:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Injury Penalty:	#__________x $2K = $___________(subtract)

Incentives Total:	$____________

Firm-Fixed Price:	$____________
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Total Cost to the Government:	 $____________

To: Contractor

From: DON

Subject: Task Order #5

Using a paper airplane, transport at least 5 pennies a minimum of 10 feet in 10 minutes or less. Note, DON would like to have an additional 5 pennies transported but there is only funding available to move 5 pennies at this time. Also DON would like to have the pennies transported 20 feet, but once again only has funding for 10 feet at this time. DON will issue another task order next year to move the additional 5 pennies and to move all 10 pennies the additional 10 feet if the contractor cannot do it this year with the existing funding. The specification for the airplane states that it must have a length of 11” and a wing span of at least 2.” The DON RFP applicable to this task simply states: 1) personnel are not permitted in the 0' to 20' transport area; and 2) the only materials allowed in the transport area are pennies and paper. Failure to comply with the DON contract has significant fee penalties. Also, there was a recent article in the Wall Street Journal on the significant increase in paper cuts to workers. As a result the Secretary has mandated that all work in which paper is used must be done in a manner that ensures paper injuries, such as paper cuts, are avoided. Therefore all workers are required to wear gloves at all times as personnel protective equipment. Also, the workers must document that they have been briefed on the hazards involved when working with paper.

The DON budget for this work is $133.5K. The fee applicable to this scope of work is 3 percent ($4K).

Any contractor that allows one of their employees to get injured will automatically get a $2K reduction in their fee. The contractor will also get a deduction of $500 for every minute over 10 that it takes to meet the minimum requirements. A $1K reduction will be taken for each penny under five not transported 10'. Other fee reductions, as determined by the COTR, will be taken for not complying with other DON requirements. Side note: rumor has it that the contractors working this task will be laid off if all or most of the 10 pennies are transported most of the 20’.

Please note the start time: 

Time starts when the COTR gives you materials

Please note the time completed:

Total fee deductions:

Pennies Under 5:	#___________x $1K = $_____________

Excess Time Used:	#___________x $500= $_____________

Injury Penalty:	#___________x $2K = $_____________

Total Fee Deductions:	$_____________ 

Fee Earned:	$_____________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_____________
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Critique Form: Task # 1

Results:

Total Incentives Earned:

Pennies:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Feet:	#_______x $.1K = $_________

Paper not used: 	#_______x $1K = $_________

Time not used:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Incentives Total:	$_________

Firm-Fixed Price:	$_________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_________

Discussion:

What value (results/outcome) did DON “want?”

Did DON tell the contractor “how-to?” If so, explain.

How did the incentives influence your thinking?

Was the performance requirement clear? Could it be effectively measured?
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Critique Form: Task # 2

Results:

Total Incentives Earned:

Pennies:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Feet:	#_______x $.1K = $_________

Paper not used: 	#_______x $1K = $_________

Time not used:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Incentives Total:	$_________

Firm-Fixed Price:	$_________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_________

Discussion:

What value (results/outcome) did DON “want?”

Did DON tell the contractor “how-to?” If so, explain.

How did the incentives influence your thinking?

Was the performance requirement clear? Could it be effectively measured?

�Handout:	Activity: Plane Crazy





Critique Form: Task # 3

Results:

Total Incentives Earned:

Pennies:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Feet:	#_______x $.1K = $_________

Paper not used: 	#_______x $1K = $_________

Time not used:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Incentives Total:	$_________

Firm-Fixed Price:	$_________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_________

Discussion:

What value (results/outcome) did DON “want?”

Did DON tell the contractor “how-to?” If so, explain.

How did the incentives influence your thinking?

Was the performance requirement clear? Could it be effectively measured?
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Critique Form: Task # 4�tc "Critique Form\: Task # 4"�

Results:

Total Incentives Earned:

Pennies:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Feet:	#_______x $.1K = $_________

Paper not used: 	#_______x $1K = $_________

Time not used:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Injury Penalty:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Incentives Total:	$_________

Firm-Fixed Price:	$_________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_________

Discussion:

What value (results/outcome) did DON “want?”

Did DON tell the contractor “how-to?” If so, explain.

How did the incentives influence your thinking?

Was the performance requirement clear? Could it be effectively measured?
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Critique Form: Task # 5

Results:

Total fee deductions:

Pennies under 5:	#_______x $1K = $_________

Excess Time Used:	#_______x $500 = $_________

Injury Penalty:	#_______x $2K = $_________

Total Fee Deductions:	$_________

Fee earned:	$_________

Costs incurred:	$_________

Total Cost to the Government:	$_________

Discussion:

What value (results/outcome) did DON “want?”

Did DON tell the contractor “how-to?” If so, explain.

How did the incentives influence your thinking?

Was the performance requirement clear? Could it be effectively measured?
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COTR Directions:

Review the Task Order for your team prior to the exercise.

1.	Ensure the contractor does not violate any of the DON contract provisions. 

2.	Verify that the contractor completed the work scope and calculated their incentives correctly.

3.	Act as the COTR.

4.	Issue resources and start the clock. (After the contractor has read the task order (shouldn’t take more than a few minutes, no more than 15 minutes), give them their materials (pennies, paper, gloves-if requested). This is the point where the clock starts!

5.	Contract changes. (If there is a conflict, the contractor should proceed by proposing a contract modification. This will require you to negotiate the proposed modification with the contractor.)


